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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Escorts Heart and Super Speciality Hospital Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Escorts Heart and Super Speciality Hospital Limited (the “Company”)
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include the
financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs,
profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified

under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
Registered Office:

B SR & Co, (a partnership firm with Registration No. BA61223) converted into BS R & Co. LLP (a Limited Liability 14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center,
Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) with effect from October 14, 2013 Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063

Page 1 of 12



BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Escorts Heart and Super Speciality Hospital Limited

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for aur opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

B~ identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”)} issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except for the matter stated in the paragraph 2(B)(f) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss {including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b} and paragraph 2B(f) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note

~

S,

42(iii) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Escorts Heart and Super Speciality Hospital Limited

The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note
42(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below, the
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of
recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the respective software:

in the absence of an independent auditor’s report in relation to controls at service organisation for
accounting software used for maintaining the boaoks of account relating to general ledger and related
records, which is operated by a third-party software service provider, we are unable to comment whether
audit trail feature at the database level of the said software was enabled to log any direct data changes
and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions. Further, the feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility was not enabled for the period from 1 April 2023 to 22 May 2023 for certain tables
relating to the supplier module.

in respect of accounting software used for maintaining payroll records (operational for the period from 1
April 2023 to 15 August 2023), in the absence of supporting evidence on account of deactivation post 15
August 2023, we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature of the said software was enabled.

the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled on certain non-editable fields/ tables
of the accounting software used for maintaining the books of account relating to revenue and
consumption records.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated for the respective
accounting software, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

»

~
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid any
remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

\_9‘)‘%

Rajesh Arora

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 076124
Date: 20 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24076124BKHBLQ2761
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Escorts
Heart and Super Speciality Hospital Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

(i} (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

(i) (b)

(i)

(iii)

{iv)

(v)

(vi)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company does not have any intangible assets other than goodwill.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property,
Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified at least once over a period
of two years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified
during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable properties
where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management
were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the
book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
recards of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clauses
3(iii)(a) to 3(iii){f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantees and security
as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). In respect of the
investments made by the Company, in our apinion the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been
complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements of Escorts
Heart and Super Speciality Hospital Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

{vii) (a)

(b)

in respect of sale of products and services provided by it and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not carried out a
detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether these are accurate or complete.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value added
tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in a few cases of
Provident Fund (PF).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were in
arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Amount Period to Forum where
statute dues (Rupees in | Paid under which dispute is pending
Lacs) Protest the
(Rupees in amount
Lacs) relates
Income  Tax | Income Tax and 583.57 583.57 | AY 2013- | Income Tax
Act, 1961 interest thereon 14 Appellate Tribunal
(ITAT)
Income Tax | Income Tax and 360.30 360.30 | AY 2014- | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 interest thereon 15 Income- tax
(Appeals)
Income  Tax | Income Tax and 731.01 731.01 | AY 2015- | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 interest thereon 16 Income- tax
(Appeals)
Income  Tax | income Tax and 821.26 821.26 | AY 2016- | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 interest thereon 17 Income- tax
(Appeals)
Income  Tax | Income Tax and 891.09 835.50 | AY 2017- | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 interest thereon 18 Income- tax
(Appeals)
Income  Tax | Income Tax and 6.92 6.92 | AY 2018- | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 interest thereon 19 Income- tax
(Appeals)
Page 7 of 12
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Escorts
Heart and Super Speciality Hospital Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(e)

(f)

NS

Name of the Nature of the Amount Amount Period to Forum where
statute dues (Rupeesin | Paid under which dispute is pending
Lacs) Protest the
(Rupees in amount
Lacs) relates
Income  Tax | Income Tax and 9.89 9.89 | AY 2019- | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 interest thereon 20 Income- tax
(Appeals)
Income  Tax | Income Tax and 561.50 - | AY 2022- | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 interest thereon 23 Income- tax
(Appeals)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in the
payment of interest thereon to banks or financial institutions or any other lender, except those
mentioned below:

Nature of Name of Amount not Whether No. of days | Remarks, if any
borrowing lender paid on due principal or delay or
including debt date interest unpaid
securities (Rupees in
Lacs)

Non-convertible | Fortis 16,161.55 Interest 206 daysto | -

debentures Healthcare 1,621 days

{NCDs) Limited

Refer to note 30 of the financial statements.

The Company did not have any loans or borrowings from banks, financial institutions or government
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not
obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as defined
under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as defined
Page 8 of 12
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Escorts
Heart and Super Speciality Hospital Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

{x) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

{xvi) {a)

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024, Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x){(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order
is not applicable. '

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit for the current year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section
143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details
of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not
have an Internal Audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per Section 138 of
the Act.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not
have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per Section 138
of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, clause 3({xvi){b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, there is no core investment company
within the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016). Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. We have not, however, separately
evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other

r~
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Escorts
Heart and Super Speciality Hospital Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section {5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses
3(xx)(a) and 3{xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.
For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022
"
N
Rajesh Arora
Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 076124
Date: 20 May 2024 ICAl UDIN:24076124BKHBLQ2761
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of Escorts
Heart and Super Speciality Hospital Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Escorts Heart and Super
Speciality Hospital Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

r
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of Escorts
Heart and Super Speciality Hospital Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

NI

Rajesh Arora

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 076124
Date: 20 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24076124BKHBLQ2761
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ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

Notes As at

Particulars As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
(T inlacs) (¥ in lacs)
ASSETS
A. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment Sa 27,945.57 27,223.94
(b) Capital work-in progress 5b 198.14 82.99
(¢) Right-of-use asset 29 857.66 869.37
(d) Goodwill 5¢ 491.54 491.54
(e) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 11 2,582.62 5
(ii) Other financial assets 13 - 131.39 129.79
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 1,787.71 2,740.59
(g) Non-current tax assets (net) 7 3,670.37 3,584.74
(h) Other non-current assets 8 237.96 140.43
Total non-current assets (A) 37,902.96 35,263.39
B. Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 163.26 156.57
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 10 17,775.00 17,775.00
(ii) Trade receivables 11 8,839.02 16,611.57
. (iif) Cash and cash equivalents 12 3276 29.44
(iv) Other financial assets 13 6,348.47 15,667.68
(c) Other curmrent assets 8 63.15 42,62
Total current assets (B) 33,221.66 50,282.88
Total assets (A+B) 71,124.62 85,546.27
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
\A. Equity -
(a) Equity share capital 14 3,392.52 3,392.52
(b) Other equity 16,023.73 13,254.24
Total equity (A) 19,416.25 16,646.76
Liabilities
B. Non-current liabilities .
(a) Provisions 15 218.97 189.41
(b) Other non-current liabilities 16 166.23 206.74
Total non-current liabilities (B) . 385.20 ) = 396.15
C. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 31,304.00 31,304,00
(ii) Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 18 83.76 70.13
.- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 18 1,209.92 984.22
and small enterprises '
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 18,136.00 ' 35,540.99
(b) Provisions 15 11.18 11.59
(c) Other current liabilities ] 16 578.31 592.43
Total current liabilities (C) 51,323.17 68,503.36
Total liabilities (B+C) j 51,708.37 ] 68,899.51
Total equity and liabilities (A+B+C) 71,124.62 i 85,546.27
See accompanying notes forming integral part of the financial stalements 1-43

In terms of our report attached

For and on behh[f of the Board of Directors
ESCORTS HEART AND SUPERSPECIALITY,

For BSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 101248W/W-100022

Rajesh Arora shi
Partner Wector
Membership No: 076124 DIN: 08433520 DIN: 01845421

%slogi \ Mont

" Company Secretary Chi
Membership No.: A13380
Place : Gurugram
Date: May 20, 2024

inanckal Offiver

Place ; Gurugram
Date: May 20, 2024




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars " Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
( ¥ in lacs) (% in lacs)
INCOME
I Revenue from operations 20 15,902.22 13,197.67
II Other income 21 1,602.57 1,633.44
III Total income (I+IT) 17,504.79 14,831.11
IV EXPENSES
(i) Purchases of medical consumable and drugs 1,398.45 527.38
(ii) Changes in inventories of medical consumables and drugs 22 (6.69) (156.57)
(iii) Employee benefits expense 23 724.95 711.95
(iv) Finance costs 24 4,656.19 4,645.97
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 425.81 427.89
(vi) Other expenses 26 6,578.85 5,858.54
Total expenses 13,777.56 12,015.16
V Profit before tax (III-IV) 3,727.23 2,815.95
VI Tax expense
(i) Current tax 6 - -
(ii) Deferred tax credit 6 954.10 719.18
Total tax expense 954.10 719.18
VII Profit after tax for the year (V-VI) 2,773.13 2,096.77
VI Other comprehensive Income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the defined benefit liabilities 33 (4.86) (19.71)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 6 1.22 4.96
profit or loss
(3.64) (14.75)
IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 2,769.49 2,082.02
Earnings per share of ¥10 each
Basic (in %) 27 8.17 6.18
Diluted (in %) 27 8.17 6.18
_See accompanying notes forming integral part of the financial 1-43

statements

In terms of our report attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 101248W/W-100022

\Q—S}‘
Rajesh Arora
Partner

Membership No: 076124

Place : Gurugram
Date: May 20, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL

LIMITED

ADbMHijit Singh qqf‘b —
Whole time Director
DIN: 08433520

Anita Rastogi

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A13380
Place : Gurugram

Date: May 20, 2024

Bhatia

Director
DIN: 01845421

Finangial Officer



ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Year ended

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% in lacs) ( X in lacs)

A, Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,727.23 2,815.95
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 425.81 427.89
Liabilities no longer required written back (16.21) (8.25)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) (0.35) (24.43)
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 254,42 9.92
Advance income tax written off - 40,64
Interest income (1,602.22) (1,599.75)
Finance costs 4,656,19 4,645.97

7,444.87 6,307.94
Working capital adjustments
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 4,935.51 (4,686.82)
Increase in inventories (6.69) (156.57)
Decrease in other financial assets 14.20 279.55
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (59.60) 64.14
Increase in trade payables 255.54 99.60
Increase in provisions 10.02 12.40
Decrease in other financial liabilities (3.76) (137.53)
Decrease in other liabilities (54.63) ° (39.84)
Cash generated from operating activities 12,535.46 1,742.87
Income taxes (paid)/ refund (net) (85.63) 77.26
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 12,449.83 1,820.13
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment \ (1,189.98) (454.99)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 5.07 24.45
Interest received 10,905.63 7.32
Net cash generated from / (used in) invcsting activities (B) 9,720.72 (423.22)
C. Cash flows from financing activities*
Finance costs paid (22,167.23) (1,386.28)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (22,167.23) (1,386.28)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 3.32 10,63
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 29.44 18.81
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 12) 32.76 29.44
*Changes in liabilities arising from fi ing activities { ¥ in lacs)
Particulars Current borrowings Interest acerued
As at April 01, 2022 31,304.00 32,197.86
Finance costs - 4,645.97
Finance costs paid - (1,386.28)
As at March 31, 2023 31,304.00 35,457.55
As at April 01, 2023 31,304.00 35457.55
Finance costs - 4,641.92
Finance costs paid - (22,167.23)
As at March 31, 2024 31,304.00 17,932.24
Note:

(2) The statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with “Indirect Method" as set out on Indian Accounting Standard -7 on "Statement on Cash flows"

(b) The Compaﬁy has paid Nil towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure in the current and previous year

See accompanying notes forming integral part of the financial
statements

In terms of our report attached

For BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No 101248W/W-100022
Rajesh ]

Partner

Membership No: 076124

Place : Gurugram
Date: May 20, 2024

Whaole fime Director

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A13380
Place : Gurugram

Date: May 20, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED

irector
DIN: 01845421




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars Equity Other equity 2 {in lncy)
Equity share capital Capital redemption Seccuriticy premium®* Retained carnings Total other cquity Tolal
resoeve 8

Balance at April 1, 2022 3,392.52 S0.00 21,060.68 (9,938.46) 11,172.22 14,564.74
Profit for the year . - = 2,096.77 2,096.77 2,096.77
Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of Lax) {14.75) {14.75) (14,75),
‘Total comprehensive income for the year - - = 1082.00 2,082.02 2,082.02
Balance as at March 31, 2023 330252 30,00 21,060,608 (7.856.44) | 13,254.24 16,646.76
Profil for the year - - - 2,773.13 2,773.13 2,773.13
Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of tax) {3.64) (3.64) (3.64)
‘Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 2,769.49 2,769.49 2,769.49
IBnh.nce ag at March 31, 2024 3,392.52 50.00 21.060.68 (5.086.9&, 16.023.73 19.416.25
# Capital Redemption Rescrve Is a statutory, non-distributable reserve into which amounts are d it the redemption of purchase of a company’s own shares, The reserve is wtilised in nccordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013,

* The unutilized accumulated excess of issue price over face value on issue of shares. This reserve is utilised in with Lhe pi of the C: Act 2013,

]
See accompanying notes forining integral part of the financial stalements

In terms of our repori altached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No 101245W/\W-100022

N o

Rajesh Arora
Pariner
Membership No: 076124

Place : Gurugram
Dale: May 20, 2024
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ale ime Director
TN 08433520

W &

Anita Haxtogh

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A13380
Place : Gurugram

Date: May 20, 2024

JirSingh

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

1. Corporate Inforination

Escorts Heart and Super Speciality Hospital Limited (‘EHSSHL’ or the ‘Company’) (CIN: U851 10DL2003PLC120016) was
incorporated in the year 2003. EHSSHL is a limited company and is engaged in the business of providing clinical establishment
services including certain out-patient department (OPD) and radio diagnostic services at Jaipur and Mohali. The Company has
entered into a Hospital and Medical Services Agreement (HMSA) with Fortis Health Management (North) Limited (FHMNL)
(subsequently merged with Fortis Hospitals Limited (FHsL) and Fortis Healthcare Limited (FHL), collectively referred as
hospital operating companies, and shall provide FHsL and FHL on an exclusive principal to principal basis, hospital services
including clinical establishment services, out-patient department (“OPD”) and radio diagnostic services and shall receive
service fee in respect theréof. The Company is a subsidiary of Fortis Healthcare Limited (‘FHL’). FHL is a listed entity on both
BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The registered office of the Company is located at Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre Okhla Road, New Delhi 110025
and the corporate office of the Company is located at Tower A, Unitech Business Park, Block — F, South City 1, Sector — 41,
Gurugram, 122001, Haryana, India. The Company, operates through its clinical establishment situated at Jaipur, Rajasthan and
Mohali, Punjab.

2. Material accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. The
accounting policies adopted are consistent with the previous financial year.

(a)  Basis of preparation

6] Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013,
(“the-Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act. All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in lacs
of Indian Rupees and are rounded to the nearest lakh to two decimals, except per share data.

The financial statements have been authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 20, 2024.

(ii)  Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

(iii)  Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis except for the following items.

Item basis _ Measurement

Net defined benefit liability Present value of the defined benefit obligation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

(b)  Current versus non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED :
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(c) Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team
that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs
used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire measurement. The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

(d) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets
@) Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which includes capitalized
finance costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. The cost of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, freight, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cost of dismantling and restoring
onsite; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as_ appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss duting the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date, are shown under
other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the year end, are shown as capital work-in-progress.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate items (major Components) of property, plant and equipment.

(i)  Goodwill and other intangible assets
a) Recognition and measurement

¢ For measurement of goodwill that arises from business combination, refer note 2(e). Subsequent measurement is at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

e Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an asset. With regard to other internally generated intangible
assets:




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

- Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge
and understanding, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

- Development expenditure including regulatory cost and legal expenses leading to product registration/ market
authorisation relating to the new and/or improved product and/or process development is capitalised only if
development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible,
future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete
development and to use the asset. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use, and directly attributable
finance costs (in the same manner as in the case of property, plant and equipment). Other development
expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

e Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the date of acquisition. An intangible asset is recognised only if it is
probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. After initial recognition, other intangible assets including those required by group in a business
combination and have finite lives are carried and measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment loss..

b) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other expenditure, including
expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

¢) Amortisation
Amortisafion is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in depreciation and amortisation
in Statement of profit and loss. Goodwill is not amortised:

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate

(iii) Depreciation and amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on straight line basis on the original cost/. acquisition cost of assets or other amounts substituted for cost
of property, plant and equipment as per the useful life specified in Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Act, read with notification dated
29 August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, except for the certain classes of property, plant and equipment which are
depreciated based on the internal technical assessment of the management. The details of useful life are as under:

Category of assets Management estimate of Useful life as per
; useful life Schedule IT
Buildings 30 years 60 years
Plant and machinery 15 years 15 years
Medical equipment : 13 years 13 years
Computers 3 years 3 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years 10 years
Office equipment 5 years 5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on leasehold assets is provided over the lease term or expected useful life of the asset, whichever is lower.

Goodwill is not amortized and is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired.




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Depreciation and amortization on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets added/ disposed off during the year has
been provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date/month of addition/ disposal.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted if appropriate.

(iv) Derecognition

A property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of a tangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(e) Business combinations

Business combinations (other than business combinations between common control entities) are accounted for using the purchase
(acquisition) method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the consideration transferred, equity instruments
issued, and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. The consideration transferred does not include amounts related
to the settlement of pre-existing relationships; such amounts are generally recognised in the Statements of Profit or Loss. The
cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at fair value at the date of acquisition. Transaction
costs incurred in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred. The excess of the consideration transferred
over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of
the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination
as a bargain purchase.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder that controls the
Company are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if
later, at the date that common control was established; for this purpose comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities
acquired are recognized at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves is preserved, and they appear in the financial
statements of the Combany in the same form in which they appeared in the financial statement of the acquired entity. The
differences, if any, between the consideration and the amount of share capital of the acquired entity is transferred to capital
reserve (if credit) or revenue reserves (if debit) and if there are no reserves or inadequate reserves, to an amalgamation deficit
reserve (if debit), with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

(®  Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. The Company’s
non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting dateto determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment tésting, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (i.e. corporate assets) are companied together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest company of assets that generates cash mflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. ’




.ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets of the CGU (or-company of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairm'ent loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has
been recognized in prior periods, the Company reviews at reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

(g) Financial instrument

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. '

Initial recognition and measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

Financial assets
Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Debt instruments at amortised cost
o Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
o  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
e  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCi)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
asséts for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

'

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the
financial liability. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and
other receivables.




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Debt instrument at FVOC]

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if the objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
valué movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVPL

FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as
at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVPL. In addition, at initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably elect
to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVPL: However, such election
is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch®).

Debt instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of group companies are designated as ‘Insurance Contracts’. The
Company designates such insurance contracts as contingent liabilities.

Equity investments

Equity investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in such entities, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All other equity investments which are in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held
for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVPL. For all other equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109, the Company may make an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even
on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss to retained earnings.

Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an
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amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured
at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at
the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities at FVOCI
are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit—impéired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e abreach of contract such as a default;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;

e itisprobable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost ate deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial assets) is primarily

derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when: ‘

e  Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained. }

Write-off of financial assets

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering
a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVPL if it is
classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
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expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is also recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when, and only when, the
Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneousty.

(h) Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value except scrap, which is valued at net estimated realisable value.

The Company uses weighted average method to determine cost for all categories of inventories except for goods in transit which
is valued at specifically identified purchase cost. Cost includes all costs of purchase, and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition inclusive of non-refundable (adjustable) taxes wherever applicable.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

@) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid'investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent includes cash in hand, in banks, demand deposits with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with ori iginal maturities of three months or less, net of outstandmg bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and are considered part of the cash management system. :

)} Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of orie or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent llablhty
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.
The Company does not recognize a contingent liabi lity but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities and commitments are
reviewed by the management at each balance sheet date.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the. financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it
is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in
which the change occurs.
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(k) Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When some or all the economic
benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are
lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured
at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with
the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that
contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable
that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

o Revenue recognition

Revenue primarily consists income from Hospital and Medical Service which is recognised as and when services are rendered.
As per Hospital and Medical Services Agreement (HMSA), total operating income is bifurcated into base fees (which is fixed)
and variable fees (which is fixed percentage of actual revenue e_am'ed by the hospital operating companies).

Contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple services/ products to a customer. The Company assesses
the product/ services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligation in the contract. Revenue towards
satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated
to that performance obligation. The transaction price of services rendered and goods sold ifs net of variable consideration on
account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract including claims. Further, the
Cornpany also determines whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. These
judgments and estimations are based on various factors including contractual terms and historical experience.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can
be reliably measured.

Unbilled revenue is recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Receivables are classified as
trade receivable when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Revenue from sale of product is recognised at a point in time upon transfer of control of product to customer at the time of
delivery of goods to the customers.

Other operating revenue comprises revenue from rental income which is recognised in accordance with terms of agreements
entered into with the respective lessees.

(m) Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due within twelve months of the end of the period in which the employees render the related
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services are classified as short-term employee benefits, which include benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated
absences, performance incentives, etc. and are recognised as expenses in the period in which the employee renders the related
service and measured accordingly. Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as under:

a) Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees.
The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on
termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of
employment. The liability in respect of gratmty is recognised in the books of account based on actuarial valuation
by an independent actuary.

b) Provident fund

(i) The Company makes contribution to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner in accordance with
Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952 for its employees.

(ii) The Company's contribution to the provident fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other long-term employee benefits:

As per the Company's policy, eligible leaves can be accumulated by the employees and carried forward to future periods to
either be utilized during the service, or encashed. Encashment can be made during service, on early retirement, on withdrawal
of scheme, at resignation and upon death of the employee. Accumulated compensated absences are treated as other long-term
employee benefits.

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Actuarial valuation

The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long-term benefits is accrued in the books of account on the basis
of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The obligation is measured
at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation
under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having
maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses on other long-term benefits are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which they arise. Remeasurement gains and losses in respect of all defined benefit plans arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are recognized immediately in the Statement of Changes in Equity with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings
through OCI in the period in which they occur. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. Gains or losses on the curtailment
or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs. Any differential between
the plan assets (for a funded defined benefit plan) and the defined benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation is recognised as
a liability if it is a deficit or as an asset if it is a surplus (to the extent of the lower of present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction in future contribution to the plan).
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Past service cost is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits are already vested immediately following the introduction of,
or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the past service cost is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Past
service cost may be either positive (where benefits are introduced or improved) or negative (where existing benefits are
reduced).

(n) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially-ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their
intended uses are complete. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that
they are regarded a5 an adjustment to interest costs.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(o) Income tax

- Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCL. Interest and penalties related to income
taxes, including uncertain tax treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under
Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Current taxes

Current tax comprises the best estimate of expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable
is the best estimate of the tax amount expectéd to be paid or received after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if
any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and
settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounits used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

e temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that

- is not a business combination; and
- at the time of transaction (i) affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and (ii) does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;

o temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates or joint arrangements, to the extent that the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future; and

* taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it
is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

(p) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a léase. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the company assesses whether:

_  the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be physically
distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution
right, then the asset is not identified;

- the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
use; and

- the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision- making rights
that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases, where the decision about how
and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:

o the Company has the right to operate the asset; or
e the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used

An entity shall reassess whether a contract is, or. contains, a lease only if the terms and conditions of the contract are changed.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

(i) As a lessee
The Company accounts for assets taken under lease arrangement in the following manner:

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right of use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received.

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment.
In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements
of the lease liability. '

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.
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The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external financing sources
and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms.of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including in-substance fixed
payments. ’

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in Company’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense on a straight- line basis over the lease term.

(ii) As a lessor
The Company accounts for assets given under lease arrangement in the following manner:

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are
classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in property, plant and equipment. Rental income on
operating lease is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company
to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

(q) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currericy using the exchange rates atthe dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at balance sheet date exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as
FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive' income (OCI).
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(r)  Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The company considers all highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

(s) Operating segments

" An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components, and for
which discrete financial information is available. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, which are
common to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been treated as "unallocated
revenues/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities", as the case may be.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of healthcare services which is the only reportable segment
(t)  Earnings per share
@) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the Company

e by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in equity shares issued during the yéar.

(ii)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
e the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares,

and
e the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares

3. Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

a) Leasing arrangement (classification and accounting) — Note 29
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b)

ii)

iii)

Property, plant and equipment- accounting for Hospital and Medical Service Agreements (“HMSA”)

Clinical establishment is defined as a fully centrally air-conditioned inistitution established and specifically customised
and duly fitted with all fixtures, fittings, medical equipment and infrastructure required for running and operating a
hospital, offering:

doctors and services for diagnosis and treatment for illness, disease, injury, deformity and/or abnormality;

diagnosis of diseases through radiological and other diagnostic or investigative services with the aid of laboratory or
other medical equipment; and

beds for in-patient treatment.

The Company has entered into Hospital and Medical Services Agreements ("HMSA") with Fortis Hospitals Limited
and Fortis Healthcare Limited for Jaipur and Mohali units respectively, wherein the Company is required to provide
and maintain the Company’s clinical establishment along with other services like out-patient diagnostic (‘OPD’) and
radio diagnostic. The Company needs to exercise judgment to analyse whether the arrangement involves providing the
right to use the Company’s clinical establishment and whether the OPD and radio diagnostic services in the arrangement
are significant to the overall arrangement.

The Company has analysed the substance of the contract and have determined that fulfilment of service arrangement is
based on the use of specified assets and conveys right to use the Company’s clinical establishments. However,
substantial risk and rewards of the Company’s clinical establishments are retained by the Company even though rights
to use are given to hospital operating companies. The Company has assessed that the out-patient diagnostic and radio
diagnostic services in the arrangement are significant to the entire arrangement. Consequently, the Company’s clinical
establishments have been classified.as part of property, plant and equipment.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2024 is included in the following notes:

Financial instruments - Note 34

Fair valie measurement — Note 35

Assessment of useful life and residual value of propeity, plant and equipment and intangible asset — Note 2(d)(iii))
Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax— Note 6

Estimation of assets and obligations relating to employee benefits (including actuarial assumptions) — Note 33
Estimated impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets- Note 11 and 13

4 (i) Changes in material accounting policies

4

Material accounting policy information

The Company adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to Ind AS 1) from 1 April 2023. Although
the amendments did not result in any changes in the accounting policies themselves, they impacted the accounting
policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting policies. The amendments
also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entities to
provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand other information in the

financial statements.

(ii) Recent pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

e ?; C"E)\
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Sa

5b

Property, plant and equipment ( Tin Ines)
Particulars Freehold land Buildings Plant and Medical Furniture and Computers Office Total
(Refer note 1 & machinery equipment fittings equipment
2 below)
Gross carrying value
As at Agrﬂ 01,2022 18.068.69 13.445,38 1,537.32 798.47 0.59] 2,52 18.51 3487148
Additions = 69.349 232.59] 194,25 7.55 521 4.45) 513.44
Dis, g 0.62) (56.16)| (2.63) - - - (59.41)
As at March 31,2023 18,068.69)| 13,514.15] 2,713.75 950.09 8.14 7.73) 2296 35.325.51
Additions - 520.18 487.31 129.32 0.97 2,67 1,140,45
Disposals = - - (17.08 (14.60) - - - (31.68)
As at March 31, 2024 :s,oﬁs.ani 14,034,373 3,183.98 1,104.81 9.11 7.73 25.63] 36,434,248
Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 01,2022 = 5,732.11 1,525.43 465,96 0.28 2.49) 18.51 7,744.7§|
Charge for the year - 24671 106.37 61.60 0.39) 0.83 0 28 41618
Disposals - (.62} (56.15) (2.62) - & - (59.39}
As at Mavch 31,2023 - 5,978.20 1,575.65 524.94 0.67 3.32 18.79 8,101.57
Charge for the year - 222,62 130.59 57.14 0.85 1.70] 1.20] 414,10
DisEsals = * (15.08 (11.88) - . - (26.96)
As at March 31, 2024 -] 6,200.82 1,691.16] 570,20 1.52 5.02 19.99 848871
Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2023 | 18.068.69 7,535.95 1,138.10] 465,15 7.47| 4.41] 4.11] 27.213.94
‘As at March 31,2024 | 18,068.69 7,833.51 1,492.52] 534.61] 7.59] 2.71| 5.64] 27.945.57

1, Exclusive charge on immovable property located at Mohali against cumulalive borrowings
Hospotel Limited, Escoris Heart Institule and Research Centre Limited and

Hospitals Limited, Hospitalia Eastern Privale Limited, Fortis

2. Exclusive charge on immovable property lot:.aled at Jaipur against cumulative borrowings takes

taken from The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Co}porﬂinn Limited by Foriis Healthcare Limited, Fortis

n from DBS Bank Lid. by Fortis Healthcare Limited,

3, The Company does nol have any immovable properly, whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company and no immovnble property is jointly held with others.

4, The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year ended March 31, 2024 and previous year ended March 31, 2023,

5, The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or

Capital work-in-progress

pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

Rupees in lncs

Particulars As at As al

31 Marehy 2024 | 31 March 2023
Opening Balance R2 99 3145
Additions® 1,255 60 56495
Transfer 1o property, plant and equipment (1.141145) {513.44)
C!nsiné balance 19514 52.92

*The Company accounts for all capitalizalion of properly, plant and equipment through copital work in prog

and therefore the

opening balance of capital work in progress s adjusted for additions 1o property, plant ond equipment.

(a) Ageing Schedule for Capital-work-in progress is as follows:

CWIP Amount in CWIP for the year March 31, 2024 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years * 2-3 years Meyetian
years
Projects in progress 197.01 1.13 - 198.14
Erojects lemporarily suspended - - - - .
Total 197.01 L13 - - 198.14
CWIP ‘Amount in CWIP for (he year March 31, 2023 Total
Less than 1 year' 1-2 years 2-3 years Morelthanis
years
Projecis in progress 51.51 648 25.00 - 8299
Projects temporaniy suspended - - - - =
Total 51.51 6.48 25.00 - 82.99
(b) There is no amount in Capilal-work-in progress pl hedule, whose is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared 10 its original plan.

Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limiled.

in capital work in progress is the difference between closing and



ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

5¢. Goodwill ; ( Tin lacs)
Particulars Goodwill on acquisition
Cost

As at April 01, 2022 491.54
Additions ' -
Disposals =
As at March 31, 2023 491.54
Additions -
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2024 491.54
Impairment

As at April 01, 2022 3
Impairment during the year -
As at March 31,2023 2
Impairment during the year .
As at March 31, 2024 .

Carrying amount :
As at March 31, 2023 491.54
As at March 31, 2024 491.54

Note: Closing goodwill for Z 491.54 lacs consists of goodwill arising at the time of the acquisition of clinical establishment at Mohali.

At cash generating unit (CGU's) level the goodwill is tested for impairment annually at the year-end or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

The Company made an assessment of recoverable amount of the CGUs based on value-in-use calculations which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management. The fair value measurements were categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs in the valuation technique used.

Cash flow projections were developed covering seven year period as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 which reflects a more appropriate indication/trend
of future track of business of the Company. Cash flows beyond the seven year period were extrapolated using estimated rates stated below.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct
costs during the year. Management estimates discount rates using post-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market. ) '

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations are as follows:

Particulars As at As at

: 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Compound average net sales growth rate for seven year period (p.a.) 5% 5%
Growth rate used for extrapolation of cash flow projections beyond seven year period. 4%pa. 4%p.a.
(Refer note below) e
Discount rate (p.a.) (pre-tax) 18.87% 18.87%
Discount rate (p.a.) (post-tax) 14.12% 14.12%

Note: Management believes that any reasonable possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable

amount.
Discount rates - Management estimates discount rates using post-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the risks specific to the CGU, taking into

consideration the timé value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount
rate calcilation is based on the specific circumstances of the Company and its operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital
(WACC).

Growth rates - The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Management determines the budgeted growth rates based on past performance and its
expectations of market development. The weighted average growth rates used were consistent with industry reports.




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
(X in lacs) R in lacs)
6 Deferred Tax Assets (net)
Deferred tax assets 2,465.39 3,286.34
Deferred tax liabilities (677.68) (545.75)
Deferred tax assets recognised in books 1,787.71 2,740.59
The following is the analysis of movement in deférred tax assets / (liabilities) presented in financial statements:
2023-2024 ( in lacs)
As at Credit/(charge) to  Credit to other Asat
April 01, 2023 profit and loss comprehensive - March 31, 2024
income
Deferred tax asset
(a) Provision for expected credit loss 2035 63.66 - 84,01
(b) Defined benefit obligation ) 50.59 6.10 122 5791
(c) Carry forward losses, unabsorbed depreciation and allowances 3,153.17 (884.94) - 2,268.23
(d) Fair valuation of advance from customers 62.23 (10.19) - 52.04
(e) Disallowed under section 43B(h) - 3.20 - 3.20
. 3,286.34 (822.17) 1.22 2,465.39
Deferred tax liabilities
(a) Property, plant and equipment (422.64) (131.93) - (554.57)
(b) Intangible assets (123.11) - - (123.11)
(545.75) (131.93) - (677.68)
Deferred tax asset (net) 2.740.59 (954.10) 1.22 1,787.71
2022-2023 (% in lacs)
As at Credit/ (charge) to  Credit to other Asat

April 01, 2022 profit and loss comprehensive March 31, 2023
income
Deferred tax asset
(a) Provision for expected credit loss 2221 (1.86) - 20.35
(b) Defined benefit obligation 42.51 3.12 4.96 50.59
(¢) Carry forward losses, unabsorbed depreciation and allowances 3,734.09 (580.92) - 3,153.17
(d) Fair valuation of advance from customers 72.42 (10.19) - 62.23
3,871.23 (589.85) 4.96 3,286.34
Deferred tax liabilities
(a) Property, plant and equipment (293.52) (129.12) - (422.64)
(b) Intangible assets (122.90) (0.21) - (123.11)
(416.42) (129.33) S (545.75)
Deferred tax asset (net) 3,454.81 (719.18) 4.96 2,740.59
Expiry in Assessment Year
As on 31 March 2024 As on 31 March 2023
Business losses Gross Amount Tax effect Gross Amount Tax effect
2029-30 1,760.88 443,18 2,582.28 649.96
1,760.88 443.18 2,582.28 649.96
Unabsorbed depreciation
No expiry 5,916.35 1,489.03 5,968.06 1,502.16
) 5,916.35 1,489.03 5,968.06 1,502.16
Credit u/s 94B of Income Tax Act, 1961
2027-28 1,334,98 335.99 3,977.14 1,001.05
1,334.98 335.99 3,977.14 1.001.05
Total carry forward losses, unabsorbed depreciation and allowances 9,012.21 2,268.20 12,527.48 3,153.17




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2024 -March 31, 2023
(% in lacs) (% in lacs)
6 Deferred tax (net) (Cont'd...)
Income tax
Current tax
Current income tax charge for the year - -
Deferred tax .
Deferred tax charge/(credit) for the year 954.10 719.18
954.10 719.18
Tax expense recognised through the statement of profit and loss 954.10 719.18
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Tax related to items that will not be classified to Profit and Loss 1.22 4.96
Income tax charged to other comprehensive income 1.22 4.96
The Income tax expense for the year can be r iled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax from cpntinuiﬁg operations 3,727.23 2,815.95
Enacted income tax rate in India 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax charge calculated 938.07 708.77
Others ; 16.03 10.41
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 954.10 719.18
7 Non-current tax assets (net)
Considered good i
Advance income tax (net of provision for taxation) 3,670.37 3,584.74
3,670.37 3,584.74
8 Other assets (unsecured)
Non-current
Considered good
(a) Technology renewal fund 160.07 121.07
(b) Capital advances 71.68 13.22
(c) Prepaid expenses 6.21 6.14
Considered doubtful :
(a) Capital advances 57.89 57.89
(b) Security deposits 1.30 1.30
Less: Loss allowance (59.19) (59.19)
237.96 140.43
Current
Considered good
(a) Advance to vendors 20.80 3.48
(b) Prepaid expenses 4235 39.14
63.15 42.62
9 Inventories
Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value
Medical consumables and drugs - 163.26 156.57
' 163.26 156.57




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
(T in lacs) (% in lacs)
10 Investments

Current

Unquoted investments in fellow subsidiaries

Investment in debt instruments measured at amortised cost

@ International Hospital Limited (Refer note 39 (i))

1,777,500 (1,777,500 as at March 31, 2023) unsecured 9% p.a 17,775.00 17,775.00
optionally convertible debentures of INR 1,000 each fully paid up

Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments in fellow subsidiaries 17,775.00 17,775.00

Aggregate gross value of unquoted investments in fellow subsidiaries 17,775.00 17,775.00

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments in fellow subsidiaries




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Particulurs Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% in lacs) (% in lacs)

11 Trade receivables (Unsccured unless otherwise stated)
Non-Current
(a) Considéred good

From others - -
From relaled parties (refer note 28) 2,81893 -
(b) Credit impaircd
From others -
Less: Loss allowance * (23631) =
2,582.62 =
Current
(@) Considered good
From others H 39.62 1787
From relaled parties (rcfer note 28) 8,799.40 16,593.70
(b) Credit impaired
From others 3971 2172
Lcss: Loss allowance (39.71) (21.72)
8.839.02. 16,611.57

In accordance with Ind AS 109, (he Company applics Expecied Credit Loss (ECL) imodel for measuresnent and recognition of impairment loss lowards expecied risk of delays and default in collection.
As per terms of Hospital and Medical Services Agreements (HMSA), the average credit period allowed is 05-11 days. For the outlet vendors with whom rental arrangements have been entered into by the
Company, average credit period is upto 30 days. Trade receivables are unsccured and are derived from revenue carned from providing clinical eslablishment and other ancillary services

The Company uses its judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting inpuls to determine impairment of these (rade receivables, based on the Company’s historical experience towards potential billing
adjustments, delays and defaults ai the end of cach reporting period. The provision matrix used to compute (he expected credit loss allowance for (rade receivables (other than due from related parties) are as

follows:

Ageing backet Expected eredii allowance%
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

0 - & months s .

Mare than & modths L 100% 100%%

The hospital operaling companies (related parties) have confirmed that they have the ability and intention to sitle the outslanding dues payable lo the Company in due course. Hence, the Company believes that
no adjustment is required (o be carried out in its financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 with respect (o such outstanding receivables, other than those already made

The movement in expected credit loss during the year is as follows:

{Tin lacs)
Particulars ’ For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 21,712 9,10
Add: Creation of the allowance for expecled credil loss (Refer note 26) 254,42 9,92
Less: Unilisation of the allewnnce for expected credit Joss 12 (1730
Balunce at the end of the vear . 276.02 21.72
The Company does not require collateral in respect of trade receivables. The Company does not have (rade reccivables for which no loss is ised because of coll; 1
Ageing of Trade Receivable
Non-currcnl
Particulars (o] ing for the period March 31 2024 from the due date of payment
Not due Less (han 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months |
il Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good - 2.R1R93 - . - - - 2.R18.93
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant - - - - - - -
inerease in credit risk ! :
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - s - - - -
(iv) _Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - - - -
(v} Disputed Trade i — which have signi increasc - - - - - - . -
in credil risk
(vi) _Dispuled Trade Receivahles — credit impaired - . - - - - - |
Trade Reccivables (A - 2R15.93 = - - 281893
Less: Loss allowance for doubtful trade receivable (B) = (236.31)|
Net Trade receivable (A-B) 258262
Current
Particulars Outstanding for the period March 31 2024 from the due date of payment
Not duc Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months
|y __Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 64240 3.577.61 4.092.64 32637 - = 8.839.02
(i)) Undispuled Trade Receivables = which have significant - - - - - - o
Increase in credit ride
(iii) _Undispuled Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - 39.71 ¥ - - - 39.71
1¢iv) _Disputed Tradc Receivables—considercd good - - - . - - L
(v) Dispuled Trade i - which have signi increase - - - - - - -
in credit risk
(v} Dispuled Trade Receivables — credil impaired - - - - - - o=
Trade Receivables (A 642,40 35M6l 4,132.35 526.37 - 247873
Less: Loss allowance for doubilil trde receivable (B) 39.71
Net Trade receivable (A-B) #.839.02
iy
Particulars Outstaniing for the period March 31 2023 from the due date of payment
4 WNot due Less than 6 G months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
monthy
() Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 176 6.076 25 4.221.99 4.985.46 130663 1348 16,611.57
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant . - - - - - -
ingrease in crodit risk
(iii) _Undisputed Tmde Receivables — credil impaired - - 1377 414 381 2 21.72
(iv) _Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good = - - - - F R
(v) Disputed Trade Recei — which have signifi increase - - - - - - |
in credil risk
(vi) _Disputed Trade Recelvables — crodit impaired - - - - - - -|
Trade Receivables (A} 1.76 6.076.25 424176 4.989.60 131044 13.48 16,633.29
Less: Loss allowance for doubiful Irade receivable (B) (21.72)
et Trade recehvable (A-B) 16.611.57




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Particalars

Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
®in lacs) R in lacs)

12 Cash and cash cquivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash fow, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks, Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the stalemenf of cash flows can

be reconciled (o the related items in the balance sheet as follows:

(a) Cash on hand
(b) Balanceés with banks
(i) in currerit accounts f o

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet and statement of cash flows
. 13 Other ﬁn_ancill assets (unsccured)

Nou-current
Considered good
(a) Security deposils

Current
Considered good
(a) Interest accrued and due on oplionally convertible debentures
1o related party (refer note 28)
(b) Interest accrued but not due on security deposits
(c) Others

429 2.79
2847 26.65
32.76 W
131.39 129.79
131.39 129.79

6,340.35 15,643.60
324 340
4.88 20.68

6,348.47 15.667.68




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
X in lacs) (X in lacs)
14  Share capital
Authorised share capital:
34,010,655 (34,010,655 as at March 31, 2023) equity shares of 210 each 3,401.07 3,401.07
10,989,345 (10,989,345 as at March 31, 2023) preference shares of 210 each 1,098.93 1,098.93
Total authorised share capital 4,500.00 4,500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares
33,925,166 (33,925,166 as at March 31, 2023) equity shares of ¥10 each 3,392.52 3,392.52
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital 3,392.52 3,392.52
Notes:
(a) Reconciliation of the shares ding at the beginning and end of the reporting period
Equity Share Capital
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Number (% in lacs) - Number (R in lacs)
At the beginning of the year 3,39,25,166 3,392.52 3,39,25,166 3,392.52
Issued during the year - - - -
o] ding at the end of the year 3,39,25.166 3,392.52 3,39,25,166 3,392.52

(b)

©

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Where dividend is proposed
by the Board of Directors, it is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the current and previous year, there has been no dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after

distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares held by the holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries

Name of shareholder

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares held ( Tin lacs) No. of Shares held ( % in lacs)
Fortis Healthcare Limited (Holding Company) " 1,64.80,000] 1,648.00 1,64,80,000 1,648.00
International Hospital Limited (fellow subsidiary*) 1,29.90.000 1,299.00 1,29,90,000 1,299.00
Fortis Health Management Limited (fellow subsidiary) 44,55,166 445,52 44,55,166 445.52
*including 6 equity shares held by its nominces,
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of shares held % of Holding No. of shares held % of Holding
Fortis Healtheare Limited (Holding Company) 1,64,80,000 48.58% 1,64,80,000 48.58%|
1 ional Hospital Limited (fellow subsidiary®) 1,29,90,000 38.29% 1,29,90,000 38.29%
Fortis Health M Limited (fellow subsidinry) 44,55,166 13.13% 44.55,166 13.13%|
*including 6 equity shares held by its nominees.
(e) Details of shares held by the promoters
As at 31 March 2024
No. ol shares at Change during the No. of shares at % change

Promoter Name

the beginning of

the end of the

% of Total Shares

during the year

year
the year year
Fortis Healthcare Limited 1.64.80.000 - 1,64,80,000 48.58%| -
International Hospital Limited* 1,29.90.000 - 1,29,90,000 38.29%)
Fortis Health Management Limited 44.55.166 - 44.,55,166 13.13%)| -
| Total 3,39.25,166 - 3.39,25,166 100% -
Asat 31 March 2023
No. of shares at . No. of shares at
Promoter Name the beginning of B the end of the % of Total Shares % change -
. year during the year
the year year
Fortis Healthcare Limited 1,64.80,000 - 1.64,80.000 48.58%| -
International Hospital Limited* 1,29,90,000) - 1,29.90.000 38.29%) -
Fortis Health Management Limited 44,55,166 - 44,55,166 13.13%) -
Total 3,39.25,166 - 3,39,25,166 100.00% ks

*including 6 equity shares held by its nominecs.




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2034

Particulars As at As at
Mavch 31, March 31,
2024 2023
(¥ inlacs)  (¥inlacs)
15 Provisions
Non- current
Provision for employee benefits
{(8) Gratuity (Refer note 33) 178.64 155.39
(b) Compensated absences 40,33 +34,02
218.97 189.41
Current
Provision for employee benefits
(a) Gratuity (Refer note 33) 849 9.18
(b) Compensated absences 2.69 241
11.18 11.59
16  Other liabilities
Non- current
(a) Contract liability - advance from customers 166.23 206.74
166.23 206.74
Current
(a) Statutory dues payable 534.61 551.55
(b) Contract liability - advance from customers 43.70 40.88
578.31 592.43
17 Current borrowings
Unsecured - measured at amortised cost
(a) Non-convertible debentures
3,130,400 (3,130,400 es at March 31, 2023) 14.80% p.a Non-convertible 31,304.00 31,304.00
debentures (NCDs) of % 1,000 each (Refer note 30(i))
31,304.00  31,304.00
18 Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 83.76 70.13
(Refer note 38)
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 1,209.92 984.22
and small enterprises
1,293.68 1,054.35
Particulars Quisianding for March 31 2024 from due date of payment
Unbilled Net due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
_[_i_) MSME - 7341 10.36 - - - 83. 70
{1:) Others 271.28 551.19 344.83 18.10 2.12 22.40 1,209 92
(i) Disputed dues - MSME E & 5 . 5 = 5
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - B - - . - -
Totnl 271.28 624.60 355.18 18.10 2.12 22.40 1,293.68
Particulars Qutstanding for March 31 2023 from due date of pavment
Unbilled Notdue | Lessthan 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
- year years
(1) MSME - 55.96 14.09 - ] - 0.08 70,13
(1) Others 173.62 411.35 361.21 6.74 12.26 19.04 984.22
(1) Disputed dues - MSME - - = - = = =
1)Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -
Total 173.62 467.31 375.30 6.74 12.26 19.12 1,054.35
19 Other financial liabilitiés
Current
Unsecured
(a) Interest accrued and due on compulsorily convertible debentures (refer note 30(ii)) - 327475
(b) Interest accrued and due on non-convertible debentures (refer note 30(i)) 16,161.55  30,412.11
(¢) Interest accrued but not due on non-convertible debentures (Refer note 30(i)) 1,770.69  1,770.69
{d) Security deposits received 29.51 35.55
(e) Capital creditors* 160.09 36.01
(f) Employee payables 14.16 11.88
18,136.00  35,540.99

* includes amount due to micro and small enterprises amounting to ¥67.55 lacs (March 31,2023: ¥ 5.40 lacs)




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(% in lacs) ( T in lacs)
20 Revenue from operations
I. Revenue from contracts with customers
(a) Sale of services i
Income from hospital and medical services 13,390.27 12,198.83
13,390.27 12,198.83
(b) Sale of products j
Pharmacy 2,291:.21 571.06
Less: Trade discounts (85.38) (12.44)
2,205.83 558.62
Total Revenue from contracts with customers (a+b) 15,596.10 12,757.45
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in‘time 2,205.83 558.62
Services transferred over time 13,390.27 12,198.83
15,596.10 12,757.45
II. Other operating income
Income from rent (refer note 29) 266.70 42717
Liabilities no longer required written back 16.21 8.25
Scrap sales 13.31 4.80
Miscellaneous income 9.90 -
306.12 440.22
Total revenue from operations (I+1I) 15,902.22 13,197.67
21 Other income
(a) Interest income on
(i) Optionally convertible debentures (refer note 28) 1,599.75 1,599.75
(if) Income tax refund - 6.30
(1ii) Others 247 2.96
Total interest income 1,602.22 1,609.01
(b) Other non-operating income
(i) Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 0.35 24.43
Total non-operating income 0.35 24.43
Total other income 1,602.57 1,633.44
22 Changes in inventories of medical consumables and drugs
(a) Inventory at the beginning of the year 156.57 -
(b) Inventory at the end of the year 163.26 156.57
Changes in inventories [(a)-(b)] (6.69) (156.57)
23 Employee benefits expense
(a) Salaries, wages and bonus 667.68 655.01
(b) Gratuity expenses (Refer note 33) 12.92 12.25
(c) Compensated absences 7.03 8.12
(d) Contribution to provident fund and other funds (Refer note 33) 37.32 36.57
724.95 711.95
24 Finance costs
(a) -Interest expense on
- Non-convertible debentures (refer note 28) 4.632.99 4,632.99
- Interest on defined benefit plan 14.27 ~11.15
(b) Bank charges 8.93 1.83
4,656.19 4,645.97 .
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Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(T in lacs) { ¥ inlacs)
25_ Depreciation and amortisation expense
(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 5(a)) 414.10 416.18
(b) Amortization of right-of-se assets (Refer note 29’) 11.71 11.71
425.81 427.89
26 Other expenses
(a) Contractual manpower 238.37 216.72 -
(b) Power and fuel 140.75 125.87
(c) Housekeeping expenses including consumables 770.06 709.48
(d) .Pantry expenses 1.78 4.78
(e) Radiology expenses 3,757.11 3,485.61
(f) Professional and consultafion fees to doctors 815.55 725.28
(g) Cost of medical services 304.77 246.26
(h) Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and equipment 173.20 107.26
- Others 6.99 18.95
(i) Legal and professional fee (refer note below) 29.75 26.62
(i) Rates and taxes 50.72 95.59
(k) Printing and stationery 1.83 2.15
(l) Communication expenses 021 0.25
(m) Travel and conveyance 0.96 0.38
(n) Insurance 28.59 3831
(0) Allowance for doubtful receivables (Refer note 11) ~ 254.42 9.92
(p) Advance income tax written off - - 40.64
(q) Miscellaneous expenses 3.79 447
6,578.85 5,858.54
Note:
(i) Auditors' remuneration comprises (inclusive of applicable indirect tax)
(a) Statutory audit fee 13.75 13.75
(b) Tax audit fee 1.40 1.40
(c) Out of pocket expenses 1.51 1.51
16.66 16.66
27 Earnings per share (EPS)
Profit as per statement of profit and loss (Amount in lacs) 2,773.13 2,096.77
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 3,39,25,166 3,39,25,166
Basic EPS (in Rs.) ‘ 8.17 6.18
8.17 6.18

Diluted EPS (in Rs.)
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28. Related party disclosures

Names of related parties and related party relationship

Ultimate Holding Company

IHH Healthcare Berhad

Integrated Healthcare Holdings Limited

Intermediate Holding Company

Parkway Pantai Limited

Northern TK Venture Pte Ltd

Holding Company

Fortis Healthcare Limited (‘FHL”)

Fortis Hospitals Limited (‘FHsL’)

Fortis Hospotel Limited (‘FHTL’)

Fellow subsidiaries (parties with

Hospitalia Eastern Private Limited (‘"HEPL”)

whom transactions have taken
place)

Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre Limited (‘“EHIRCL”)

-Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited (‘HHPL”)

International Hospital Limited (‘THL”)

Mr. Abhijit Singh, Whole Time Director

Ms. Manu Kapila, Non-Executive Director

Key Management  Personrel

Mr. Ashish Bhatia, Non-Executive Director

(‘KMP*) / Director

Mr. Neerav Bansal, Non-Executive Director

Ms. Anita Rastogi, Company Secretary

Mr. Montoo Garg, Chief Financial Officer

(¥ in Lacs)

Transactions details Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Service fee

Fortis Hospitals Limited 6,460.95 6,091.78

Fortis Healthcare Limited 6,929.32 6,106.55

Interest income on

Optionally convertible debentures

International Hospital Limited 1,599.75 1,599.75

Finance Cost on

Non-convertible debentures

Fortis Healthcare Limited 4,632.99 4,632.99

Retainership fee

Ms. Anita Rastogi '1.58 1.58

Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of

Fortis Healthcare Limited 460.17 435.01

Fortis Hospitals Limited 43441 523.93

Transfer of employee benefit liabilify-fp Gompany by

Fortis Healthcare Limited AN 0.02
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Collection on behalf of Company by

Fortis Healthcare Limited 3.87 72.46

Expenses incurred on behalf of Company by

Fortis Healthcare Limited - 0.34

Financial guarantees disposal

Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre Limited - 11,155.00
Fortis Healthcare Limited - 48,679.82
Fortis Hospitals Limited | - - 50,847.00
Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited : - 2,450.00
International Hospital Limited - 14,025.00
Fortis Hospotel Limited - 12,917.00
Hospitalia Eastern Private Limited - 3,300.00
(R in Lacs)
Balance outstanding at the year end As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current borrowings

Non-convertible debentures

Fortis Healthcare Limited 3 31,304.00 31,304.00

Other current financial liabilities

Interest accrued

-Compulsorily convertible debentures

Fortis Healthcare Limited : - 3,274.75
-Non-convertible debentures : _ .
Fortis Healthcare Limited 17,932.24 32,182.80

Other non-current assets

Technology renewal fund

| Fortis Healthcare Limited 4320 | . 21.20

Fortis Hospitals Limited ' 116,87 99.87

Current investments

Optionally convertible debentures

International Hospital Limited : 17,775.00 17,775.00

Trade and other receivables (Gross)

Fortis Hospitals Limited 6,730.34 13,524.10

Fortis Healthcare Limited _ 4,887.99 3,069.60

Expected credit loss

Fortis Hospitals Limited 36.24 -

Fortis Healthcare Limited ' 200.07 -

Other current financial assets

Interest accrued and due

Optionally convertible debentures ~." & Co\_.\

International Hospital Limited /&7« ¢\ 0 e 6,340.35 15,643.60
' NY ;

Tors

G e AN
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Note:

1) As per the HMSA arrangement with the hospital operating companies, the Company receives service fee
consideration from the Hospital operating companies, as and when due. As per terms of the HMSA, in the event
of any delay in payment of the Service Fee, an interest at a rate of State Bank of India base rate plus 2% per
annum (on a compounded monthly basis) shall be payable by hospital operating companies to the Company. The
Company and hospital operating companies have agreed that no interest would be charged/demanded for the
delay in the payments on amounts under HMSA for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24. Consequently, the
Company has not recognised interest on the delayed payment of the service fees/technology renewal fund during
the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024.

2) All outstanding balances with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and are to be settled in
cash within credit period from the reporting date. None of the balances are secured.

29,  Leases
As a lessee

Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below.

R in lacs)

Right-of-use assets Leasehold land
Gross carrying amount
As at April 01, 2022 ' 961.64
Additions =
Derecognition -
As at April 01, 2023 961.64
Additions =
Derecognition -
As at March 31, 2024 961.64
Accumulated amortization
As at April 01, 2022 80.56
Charge for the year 11.71
As at March 31, 2023 92.27
Charge for the year 11.71
As at March 31, 2024 103.98
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 869.37
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 857.66

As a lessor
Assets given on operating lease:

The Company has sub- leased some portion of hospital premises, carrying value of which is included in leasehold land (refer
schedule above) & freehold land/buildings (refer note 5a). In all the cases, the agreements are further renewable at the option
of the Company. The total lease income received / receivable in respect of the above leases recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year are % 266.70 lacs (March 31, 2023 T 427.17 lacs).

Revenue from HMSA

The Company has entered into a Hospital and Medical Services Agreement (HMSA) with hospital operating companies
wherein the Company is required to prov’rdeta- d maintain the Company’s Clinical Establishments along with other services
i i c.< e term of the individual HMSA is 15 years and the Company is entitled

base and vaNale fee. The base fee is fixed and the varjafiige
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30.

of net operating income of the hospital operating companies derived in accordance with the HMSA. Future minimum base fee
receivable at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

(% in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Minimum service fee:
Less than one year 6,815.43 6,616.92
One to two years 7,019.89 6,815.43
Two to three years 7,230.49 7,019.89
Three to four years 4,633.38 7,230.49
Four to five years - 4,633.38
More than five years - -
Total 25,699.19 32,316.11
Borrowings

Unsecured loans

i) Non-convertible debentures (NCDs)

A. The Company had issued the NCDs to RHT Health Trust Services Pte. Limited on April 28, 2014. On January 15, 2019,
RHT Health Trust Services Pte. Limited sold these NCDs to Fortis Healthcare Limited pursuant to the Master Purchase
Agreement dated February 12, 2018. The details are as follows:

(X in lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Number of debentures 3,130,400 3,130,400
Principal Amount (X in lacs) 31,304.00 31,304.00
Accrued interest (¥ in lacs) 17,932.24 32,182,80
Rate of Interest (p.a.) 14.80% 14.80%
Terms of redemption The maturity date of NCDs is May 01, 2032.

As per the terms of the original agreement dated April 28, 2014, the debentures were not secured with any of the assets
of the Company. On July 12,2017, the debenture agreement has been amended wherein a charge had been created against
the debentures issued. As per the terms of the revised agreement, NCDs had been secured through Axis Trustee Services
Limited by way of: ' '

a) the hypothecation on moveable and current assets and mortgage on the land at Mohali and charge on the bank
accounts of Jaipur, Mohali and Corporate locations w.e.f. January 15, 2019.
b) financial guarantee by International Hospital Limited and Fortis Health Management Limited.

Effective December 23, 2019, Axis Trustee Services Limited has satisfied the above said charge based on the no objection
certificate dated September 04, 2019 from Fortis Healthcare Limited. Accordingly, these NCDs have been disclosed as
unsecured.

The principal amount of NCDs are repayable on May 01, 2032 and the interest is payable on a half yearly basis i.e. April
27 and October 27 of every year.

As per the terms of the amended agreement dated July 12, 2017, consequent to the default in payment of interest, the
outstanding principal and interest is repayable on demand.

The Company continued with the default in the payment of interest in the current year.

The Board of Directors of Fortis Healthcare Limited had during the earlier year confirmed through an extension letter
that they will not call for the outstanding interest till the time, the Company is in a position to make these payments.
However, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the payment in case demanded by Fortis Healthcare
Limited and accordingly these ,,ag-s-(l? en classified as current.




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

31.

32,

33.

ii) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs):

The Company originally issued 2,542,000 Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (‘CCDs’) for an aggregate
consideration of Z 25,420.00 lacs to Fortis Global Healthcare Services Pte. Limited (FGHIPL) which were transferred to
Fortis Healthcare Limited (FHL) on January 15, 2019. These CCDs were convertible into 16,480,000 equity shares of
the Company at a price of ¥154.25 per share. The investor of CCDs had a right to convert each CCD into shares at any
time on or prior to the maturity date. These CCDs carried interest @ 17% p.a. which was payable on quarterly basis or

such other period mutually agreed between the parties.

On March 29, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Company passed a resolution to convert these CCDs into 16,480,000
equity shares of face value of ¥ 10 each. However, interest accrued till the date of conversion has not paid by the
Company. During the current year, the Company paid the entire interest accrued till the date of conversion on these
CCDs amounting to ¥ 3,274.75 lacs (outstanding as on March 31, 2023: ¥ 3,274.75 lacs).

Commitments:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(X in lacs) (T in lacs)

- Intangible assets

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on cap1ta1
account and not provided for
-Property plant and equipment (net ‘of capital advances of T 71.68
lacs (as at March 31, 2023  13.22 lacs))

185.64

607.73

a. The Company has other commitments, for putchase/sales orders which are issued after considering requirements as per operating
cycle for purchase/sale of services, employee’s benefit. The company does not have any long-term commitments or material.
non-cancellable contractual commitments/ contracts, including derivative contracts for which there were any material

foreseeable losses.

b. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Contingent liabilities to the extent not provided for:

Particulars March 31, 2024 .March 31, 2023
Income tax related matters
- Disallowance of interest on CCDs (Refer note 2 below) 7,036.02 3,226.39
- - Others 16.81 6.93
7,052.83 3,233.32

1) The Company believes that none of the above matters, either individually or in aggregate, are expected to have any material
adverse effect on its financial statements. The cash flows in respect of above matters are determinable only on receipt of
judgements/decisions pending at various stages/forums. The company has assessed that it is only possible, but not probable,

that outflow of economic resources will be required.

2) As per clause 7 of the sponsor agreement dated September 18, 2012 the Company is indemnified by Fortis Healthcare
Limited (Holding Company) for any losses suffered or to be suffered arising from outstanding assessments/ litigations
relating to non-allowance of interest on compulsorily convertible debentures or optionally convertible debentures. Based on
the management’s own assessment, the Company believes that an unfavorable outcome is remote for the indemnified

outstanding assessments/ litigations.

Employee Benefits Plan:

Defined Contribution Plan

Under the defined contribution plans, the Company makes provident fund (PF) and employee state insurance (ESI) contributions
for qualifying employees. The Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the salary to fund the benefits based
. on rates specified in the rules of the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employees State
Insurance Act, 1948 respectively.
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The Company has recognised Rupees 37.32 lacs (Previous year Rupees 36.57 lacs) for provident fund and employee state insurance

contribution in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, where each employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a
gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion

of 5 years of service. The Gratuity is unfunded.

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expenses recognised in-the Statement of Profit and Loss and the

amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet.

(% in lacs)
Particulars As at As at
. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i. Movement in Net Liability ' ' N
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 164.57 140.06
Current service cost 12.92 12.25
Interest cost 11.69 9.22
Actuarial loss recognised in other comprehensive income 4.86 19.71
Obligation transferred from other companies (0.06) -
Benefits paid (6.85) (16.67)
Present value of obligations at the end of the year 187.13 164.57
(X in lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of unfunded obligation
Amounts in the Balance Sheet
(a) Liabilities 187.13 164.57
(b) Assets 3 - -
(c) Net liability/(asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet 187.13 164.57
Current liability 8.49 9.18
Non-current liability 178.64 155.39
(% in lacs)
ii. Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss is as follows: Year ended Year ended
) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amount recognised in employee benefit:expense
Service cost 12.92 12.25
Total 12.92 12.25
Amount recognised in finance cost
Interest cost 11.69 9.22
Total 11.69 9.22
Total Amount charged to Statement to Profit and Loss 24.61 21.47
- (X in lacs)
iii. Exps:nse recognised in Statement of Other comprehensive Year ended Year ended
income is as follows:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net actuarial loss / (gain) due to experience adjustment 1.15 23.19
Net actuarial loss / (gain) due to assumptions changes 3.71 _ (3.48)
Total ' 4.86 19.71
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The Principal assumptions used’in determining gratuity and compensated absences obligation for the Company’s'plan are
shown below:

: As at As at

Principal Actuarial assumptions for gratuity and compensated March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
absences
Discounting rate (p.a.) 7.00% 7.25% "
Expected salary increase rate (p.a.) 7.50% 7.50%
Withdrawal rate (p.a.)
Age up to 30 years 18% 18%
Age from 31 to 44 years ) 6% 6%
Age above 44 years 2% 2%

) Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
e bloed Mortality (2006-08) | Mortality (2006-08)

Notes:

a) The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

b) Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary escalation
rate and withdrawal rate. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined by the actuarial based on reasonably possible
changes of the respective assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holditig all other assumptions

constant.
(X in lacs)
Particulars . As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Change in discount rate by 0.5% (7.31) 7.79 (6.64) 7.08
Change in salary increase rate by 1% 15.87 (14.24) 14.48 (12.95)
Change in withdrawal rate by 5% ) (2.16) 1.90 (1.16) 1.07
Expected benefit payments for the future years
(X in lacs)
. Year ended March
Year ended- Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended 31, 2030 to year
March 31,2025 | March 31,2026 | March 31,2027 | March 31,2028 | March 31, 2029 ended March 31,
2034
8.78 11.59 18.77 7.98 17.84 169.88

At March 31, 2024 the weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation was 9 years (March 31, 2023: 9 years)
34. Financial Instruments
i) Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximizing the
return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

The Company's Board reviews the capital structure of the Company on need basis. As part of this review, the Board considers
‘the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Amongst other things, the Company's objective for capital

management is to ensure that it maintains stable capital management by monitoring thé financial covenants attached to the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes 17 and 19 offset by cash and bank
balances) and total equity of the Company.

The Company is not exposed to any externally imposed capital requirements.
(ii) Financial risk management objectives

The Company’s Corporate Treasury function-gr‘cl\:.i
international financial markets, monitors a Loﬁ ;
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b)

The Board of Directors manages the financial risk of the Company through internal risk reports which analyze exposure by
magnitude of risk.

Market Risk
The Company is not exposed to market risks.
Interest rate risk management

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk because the Company has borrowed funds at fixed interest rates.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will defauit on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Company. The Company takes due care while extending any credit as per the approval matrix approved by Board of

Directors.
Refer note 11 of the financial statements for carrying amount and maximum credit risk exposure for trade receivables.

Expected credit loss on financial assets other than trade receivables:

Company carries other financial assets such as investments, balances with banks, inter-corporate deposits, advances, security
deposits, loans to related parties and interest accrued etc. Company monitors the credit exposure on these financial assets on
a case-to-case basis. Investments are assessed for credit risk based on thie underlying valuation of the entity and their ability
to repay within the contractual repayment terms. Company creates loss allowance wherever there is an indication that credit
risk has increased significantly. :

Reconciliation of loss allowance measured at life-time expected credit losses for credit impaired financial assets other than
trade receivables

_ (X in lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 59.19 59.19
Add: Loss allowance recognised - -
Balance at the end of the year 59.19 59.19

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of 32.76 lacs at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: ¥ 29.44 lacs). The cash and
cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which have high credit ratings assigned by credit-
rating agencies.

The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the
counterparties.

The Company uses a similar approach for assessment of ECLs for cash and cash equivalents to those used for debt securities.
Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, who have established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding
and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintainirig adequate reserves, banking
facilities, reserve borrowing fagcilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. In case of any shortfall Holding Company has agreed to provide financial
and operational support to the company as may be required in near future.

The Company's cash inflows are largely dependent on receipt of receivable balances from the Holding Company i.e. Fortis
Healthcare Limited and fellow subsidiary i.e. Fortis Hospitals Limited. These parties have confirmed that their ability and
intention to settle the outstanding dues payable to the Company on a timely basis.

Liquidity and interest risk
The following tables detail the Company's-remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with
agreed repayment periods. The tables }age Beeni@rgwn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based




ESCORTS HEART AND SUPER SPECIALITY HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

, (% in lacs)

Particulars Within 1 year 1-2 year More than 2 Total Carrying
= years amount
As at March 31, 2024
Non-convertible ‘ debenture* 49,236.24 - - 49,236.24 49,236.24
(including accrued interest thereon)
Trade payables 1,293.68 - - 1,293.68 1,293.68
Other financial liabilities 203.76 - - 203.76 203.76
Total 50,733.68 - - 50,733.68 50,733.68
(X in lacs)
Particulars Within 1 year 1-2 year More than 2 Total Carrying
years amount

As at March 31, 2023
Interest accrued on Compulsorily 3,274.75 - - 3,274.75 3,274.75
convertible debentures*
Non-convertible debenture* 63,486.80 - - 63,486.80 63,486.80
(including accrued interest thereon)
Trade payables 1,054.35 - - 1,054.35 1,054.35
Other financial liabilities ~ 83.44 - - 83.44 _ 83.44
Total 67,899.36 - - 67,899.36 67,899.36

* The Board of Directors of the respective lenders during the earlier years had agreed that they will not call for the outstanding
interest or/and principal till the time, the Company is in a position to make these payments. However, the Company does not have
an unconditional right to defer the payment in case demanded by Fortis Healthcare Limited and accordingly these have been
classified as current. Also refer note 30(i) and 30(ii).

35. Fair value measurement

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

31 March 2024
R in lacs)
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
Note Fair value through Amortized Total
profit and loss cost
(FVTPL)
Financial assets
Investment in  optionally (a) - 24,115.35 24,115.35 24,115.35
convertible debentures (OCDs)
(including accrued interest)
Other financial assets (non (b) - 131.39 131.39 131.39
current)
Trade receivables (a) - 11,421.64 11,421.64 11,421.64
Cash and cash equivalents (a) - 32.76 32.76 32.76
Other financial assets (current) (a) - 8.12 8.12 8.12
Total - 35,709.26 35,709.26 35,709.26
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(X in lacs)
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
Note Fair value through Amortized Total
profit and loss cost
(FVTPL)
Financial liabilities
Non-convertible debenture (a) - 49,236.24 49,236.24 49,236.24
(including accryed interest :
thereon)
Trade payables (current) (a) - 1,293.68 1,293.68 1,293.68
Other financial liabilities (a) - 203.76 203.76 203.76
(current) :
Total - 50,733.68 50,733.68 50,733.68
31 March 2023
(X in lacs)
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
Note Fair value through Amortized Total
profit and loss (FVTPL) cost
Financial assets :
Investment in  optionally (a) - 33,418.60 33,418.60 33,418.60
convertible debentures (OCDs)
(including accrued interest) :
Other financial assets (b) - 129.79 129.79 129.79
Trade receivables ) - 16,611.57 16,611.57 16,611.57
Cash and cash equivalents (a) - 29.00 29.00 29.00
Other financial assets (current) (a) - 24.08 24.08 24.08
Total - 50,213.48 50,213.48 50,213.48
(% in lacs)
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
Note Fair value through Amortized Total
profit and loss (FVTPL) cost
Financial liabilities
"Interest accrued and due on (a) - 3,274.75 3,274.75 3,274.75
Compulsorily convertible
debentures
Non-convertible debenture (a) - 63,486.80 63,486.80 63,486.80
(including accrued interest
thereon)
Trade payables (current) (a) - 1,054.35 1,054.35 1,054.35
Other financial liabilities (a) - 83.44 83.44 83.44
(current)
Total - 67,899.34 67,899.34 67,899.34

The following methods / assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to respective
carrying amount due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
(b) Fair valuation of non-current financial assets has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as there is no significant
difference between carrying value and fair value. '

Financial instruments measured at amortized cost

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements ate a
reasonable approximatjon of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be
significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.
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36.

37.

38.

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the
transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Since, during the year the Company has not °
entered into any international transaction with the associated enterprises, provisions of Section 92E of Income Tax Act, 1961
are not applicable to the Company. The management is of the opinion that its international transactions entered during the
earlier years were at arm's length, thus the aforesaid legislation will not have any lmpact on the Ind AS financial statements,
particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

Segment information

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of healthcare services which is the only reportable segment as per IND AS
108 “Operating Segments”

Sales by market- Revenue from external customers by location of customers
The following table shows the distribution of the Company’s revenues by geographical market:

(X in lacs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
India 15,902.22 13,197.67
Qutside India - -
Total 15,902.22 13,197.67-

Carrying value of non-current assets- by location of assets
The following table shows the carrying amount of non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets
by geographical area in which the assets are located:

(Rin lacs)
‘Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
India 33,401.23 32,393.01
Outside India - -
Total 33,401.23 32,393.01

Major customer
1. Fortis Hospitals Limited, a fellow subsidiary contributes more than 10% to the revenue of the Company. The revenue
earned during the current year is ¥ 6,461.02 lacs (for the year ended March 31, 2023 %6,091.78 lacs).
2. Fortis Healthcare Limited, holdmg company contributes more than 10% to the revenue of the Company. The revenue
earned during the current year is Z 6,929.78 lacs (for the year ended March 31, 2023 Z 6,107.05 lacs).

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micro and Small Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends
that the micro enterprises and the small enterprises should mention in their correspondences with their customers the
Entrepreneur Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the memoraridum. Accordingly, the below information
regarding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such partiés have been identified on the

basis of information available with the Company.
(Z in lacs)

March 31, 2023

Particulars March 31, 2024
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:

-Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises*

-Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to - -
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when. est dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterpri g
as a deductible expenditure und
2006

15131 | 75.53
234 ' -
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* this includes amount due to capital creditors amounting to Z 67.55 lacs (March 31,2023 ¥ 5.40 lacs)

39. Details of loans given to subsidiaries and associates and firms/ companies in which directors are interested

(i) The particulars of investments made by the Company as required to be disclosed by Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act,

2013 are as follows:

Nature of the Issuer’s Rate of Redemption date | Secured/ ® in lacs)
Instrument name Interest* as per the terms | unsecured Amount as at

of the agreement

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Optionally International 9% p.a) September 16, | Unsecured 17,775.00 17,775.00
convertible Hospital 2030 or before by
debentures Limited giving . prior
[Refer Note 1 notice of 6
below] months

Note 1: The redemption date specified above are the dates as per the terms of the agreement. The interest on the optionally
convertible debentures is receivable on monthly basis or can be deferred up to a period of 5 years on a mutually agreement
basis which has éxpired. During the current year ended March 31, 2024 the Company has received partial payment of
%10,895.00 lacs (previous year :nil) against interest accrued and due on optional convertxble debentures. Interest outstanding
as at March 31, 2024 ¥ 6,340.35 lacs ( March 31,2023 % 15,643.60)
The Board of Directors of the Company has agreed to extend timelines that they will not call for the outstanding balance till
the time, International Hospital Limited is in a position to make these payments. This assessment is made at every year end.

Investment has been made for the purpoese of business expansion.

*These OCDs carry floating rate of interest based on the performance of the issuer company as below:

~ Sr. No.

Level of EBIT

Rate of Interest

1 Less than 3,000 Crore

9% p.a.

2 3,000 Crore to 3,250 Crore

18% p.a., provided additional 8.7% p.a. from closing date to the beginning
of the year for which EBIT is more than 3,000 Crore

3 3,250 Crore to 3,500 Crore

20% p.a., provided additional 2% p.a. from closing date to the beginning of
the year for which EBIT is more than 3,250 Crore

4 More tha_m 3,500 Crore

22% p.a., provided additional 2% p.a. from closing date to the beginning of
the year for which EBIT is more than 3,500 Crore

40. Corporate social responsibility
As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules therein, the Company is required to spend at least 2% of average
net profit of preceding three years towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Since, the Company has earned profit of
more than 5 crores in the preceding year, CSR provisions are applicable on the Company in the current year and previous
year, However, the Company does not have sufficient average net profits for preceding 3 years. Accordingly, no contribution

is to be made in the current year and previous year.
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41.

42.

Ratio analysis and its elements

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31- 31- % change | Reason for variance
Mar-24 | Mar-23
Current Ratio (in | Current Assets Current 0.65 0.73 | (11.81%) -
tirhes) Liabilities
Debt-Equity Total Debt Shareholder’s 1.61 1.88 | (14.26%) -
Ratio (in times) Equity
Debt Service Earnings for debt Debt service = 1.74 1.54 | (12.59%) -
Coverage Ratio service = Net profit Interest &
(in times) after taxes + Non- Lease Payments
cash operating + Principal
expenses Repayments
Return on Equity | Net Profits after taxes | Average 15.38% | 13.44% 14.46% -
Ratio (in %) ‘— Preference Shareholder’s
Dividend Equity
Inventory Cost of goods sold Average 8.70 4.74 83.74% | Due to increase  in
turnover Ratio ' Inventory pharmacy  purchases
(in times) which was started
during mid of previous
financial year °
Trade Net credit sales = Average Trade 1.13 0.92 22.65% -
Receivables Gross credit sales - Receivable
Turnover Ratio sales return
(in times)
Trade Payables Net credit purchases | Average Trade 1.19 0.52 127.82% | Due to increase in
Turnover Ratio = Gross credit Payables pharmacy  purchases
(in times) purchases - purchase which was started
return during mid of previous
financial year.
Net Capital Net sales = Total Working capital (0.88) (0.72) 21.24% -
Turnover Ratio sales - sales return = Current assets
.| (in times) (net of trade — Current
discount) liabilities
Net Profit Ratio | Net Profit Net sales = 17.46% | 15.90% 9.81% -
(in %) Total sales -
sales return
Return on Earnings before Capital 16.69% | 15.72% 6.15% -
Capital interest and taxes Employed =
Employed (in %) Tangible Net
Worth + Total
Debt + Deferred
Tax Liability
Return on Interest (Finance Investment 9.00% 9.00% 0.00% -
Investment (in Income)
%)

Other statutory information

(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory

period.

(i) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency durjng the financial year.

(iii) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or-entity(ies), including foreign
enfities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security-or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

& & Co
(iv) The Company has not receiyéd afly fund\{

any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
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(@) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or‘on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(v) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as,
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(vi) The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(vii) The Company has not made any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,
2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956. '

(viii) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act.

(ix) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India and the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
"does not have any CIC.

43. During the current year the shareholders of the Fortis Healthcare Limited (Holding Company) approved “to sell, transfer,
and dispose of the entire business operations” of Fortis Mohali Hospital situated at Mohali, Punjab (“Fortis Mohali
Hospital”) as housed in the Company together with all the related assets and liabilities (including for clarity, the land on
which the Fortis Mohali Hospital is situated along with the hospital building constructed thereupon) as a going concern on
a slump sale basis, to the Holding Company, for a consideration of 29,710 lacs. Subsequent to the year ended March 31,
2024 the Board of Directors of the Company have also approved the same.

" The above transaction is subject to necessary regulatory approvals which are considered substantive. Accordingly, no effect
to the same has been given in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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